
For the hearing impaired, a sign language interpreter can be provided with 48 hrs notice prior to 
the meeting.  Please call 541-766-6928 or the Oregon Communications Relay Service at 7-1-1 to 
arrange for TTY services.  A large print agenda can be available by calling 541-766-6928. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Library Advisory Board Meeting

A G E N D A  

 7:30 pm - Call to Order 

 Introductions 

 Community Comments 

 Approval of February 3, 2016 Board Minutes 

 Library Advisory Board Packet Questions & Comments  

 Strategic Plan Discussion – Goals & Objectives 

 Director’s Report / Budget Discussion 

 Division Manager Reports 

 Board Reports 
 Friends of the Library Board 
 Foundation Board 

 

 Information Sharing 

 Adjournment 

 

 

 

 
Documents for Meeting 

 Library Advisory Board Minutes – February 3, 2016 
 Library Advisory Board Report – February 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wednesday 
March 2, 2016 

 
 

7:30 pm 
Board Room 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you are unable to attend the Board 
Meeting, please notify Library Director 
Carolyn Rawles by calling 
(541) 766-6910. 



LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD MINUTES 
February 3, 2016 

 
Board Present 

 

Jennifer Alexander, Vice-Chair 
Mike Beilstein 
Katherine Bremser 
Karen Clevering 
Scott Elmshaeuser  
Cheryl Maze 
Steve Stephenson 
Norah Storniolo 
 
 
Absent/Excused: 
Jacque Schreck, Chair 
Diane Cygan 
Eric Dickey 
Paula Krane 
Anne Schuster 

Staff Present 
 

Carolyn Rawles, Library Director 
Andrew Cherbas, Extensions and Technology Mgr. 
Rachel Denue, Senior Administrative Specialist 
Shaun Hearn, Circulation Supervisor 
Carol Klamkin, Library Administrative Services Mgr. 
Kristin Starnes, Adult & Youth AIC 
Felicia Uhden, Access Services Manager 
 
 
 
Visitors:  
Penny York, Ward 1 City Councilor 

 
SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 

 

Agenda Item Information Only Action 

Call to Order 7:30 pm  

Community Comments X  

Penny York, Ward 1 City Councilor – 
Vision Action Plan 

X  

Minutes: January 14, 2016  Approved. 

Library Advisory Board Packet X  

Strategic Plan Discussion - Goals X  

Director’s Report X  

Division Manager Reports X  

Board Reports 
Friends of the Library Board 
Foundation Board 

 
X 
X 

 

Information Sharing X  

Adjournment 8:47 pm  

 
 

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Vice-Chair, Jennifer Alexander at 7:30 pm.  Went around the room 
with introductions. 



Library Advisory Board 
February 3, 2016 

Page 2 of 6 

 

II. COMMUNITY COMMENTS 
 
Penny York commented that she really enjoys storytime at our library with her great granddaughter. 
 

III. PENNY YORK, WARD 1 CITY COUNCILOR – VISION AND ACTION PLAN 
 
Penny stated that she would like to discuss what we as a community will be working on in the next year 
and encourage everyone to participate.  They have several goals, one being to develop a new Vision 
and Action Plan 2040 for the City of Corvallis.  Penny stated that the 2020 Vision Statement is mainly 
for land use plans, but does include the Library.  The new plan will be a starting point for an action plan 
for the community and how to implement it.  It will have projects to track and things for the community to 
be working on.  She commented that she sees that the Library is working on updating their Strategic 
Plan and asked them to think about what they are working on, as it could become a project in the Action 
Plan and give more opportunities for support and partnerships.   
 
Penny handed out two items: 1) a Memo regarding Focus Areas, and 2) the 1.2.2 Our Planned 
Approach.  She commented that they are working on figuring out how to track projects and how to 
gauge if they actually made an impact on the community.  The information in the Memo is a draft of the 
focus areas of the 2040 plan.  These areas are formed differently than before, they are based on 25 
interviews consultants have conducted in the community, their work in other communities, what draws 
people in, and comments from the Steering Committee and the community.  You will have opportunities 
to get your ideas into the Vision Statement itself by community workshops, surveys on the City’s 
website, and participating.  Mike Beilstein stated that, so far, they have received 23 applicants for the 
Steering Committee.  Penny added that the commitment for the committee is only until the end of the 
year.   
 
Cheryl Maze asked Penny if she could go over the handouts a little.  Penny reviewed the phases on the 
1.2.2 Our Planned Approach handout and explained that the Council has really been working at 
expanding networks in the community.  Consultants worked hard at finding the best networks and 
groups in Corvallis.  Penny encouraged everyone that if they have a group they feel might not get 
reached very easily, please contact her and she will pass it on to the consultant. 
 
Penny reported that they are currently in Phase 2 – Vision Refinement, which is building the Vision 
Statement and working on community engagement.  The timeline is to get this brought to the Council in 
November and completed in December before the current members change.  They want to be able to 
finish the plan, adopt it, and next year they will focus more on implementation and community work to 
make sure the vision really happens. 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Motion:  Steve Stephenson moved to approve the January 14, 2016 meeting minutes.  Seconded 
by Cheryl and the motion carried.  
 

V. LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD PACKET QUESTIONS & COMMENTS  
 
Karen Clevering asked when the board packet is sent out to everyone.  Rachel Denue replied that it is 
sent out via email the Friday before the meeting. 
 
Jennifer asked Carolyn Rawles to clarify the definition of AIC.  Carolyn replied that AIC means “Acting 
In Capacity” and that is what Kristin Starnes is doing at this time.  She is AIC for the Adult and Youth 
Services Manager.  Since there was not a successful recruitment for Mary Finnegan’s position, there 
will be library staff “Acting In Capacity” until new recruitment is completed. 
 
Jennifer stated that she had a good time at the Sip & Spell and it was a great turnout.  She hopes to 
see more about the event in the next packet. 



Library Advisory Board 
February 3, 2016 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 
Katherine Bremser asked about Bonnie Brzozowski’s webinar and what she had learned.  Carolyn 
replied that she doesn’t personally know much about it, but she will ask Bonnie and report back to 
Katherine.   
 
Katherine asked if anyone was going to discuss the article in the paper about City budget cuts.  Carolyn 
replied that yes, she will be discussing the budget during her report. 
 
Scott Elmshaeuser asked if Theodore Gregg, who’s obituary was included in the packet, was involved 
in the library and if so, how.  Carol replied that he was involved with the Philomath Library.  Steve 
added that he was strongly involved in getting it built. 
 

VI. STRATEGIC PLAN DISCUSSION – GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 
Carolyn reviewed the updated Goals and Objectives.  She commented that she included dates in all the 
objectives that didn’t previously include one and also added a few good suggestions that Karen had 
made to target increasing access to the library for all people. 
 
1.0 Community Catalyst 
1.1.1 – Carolyn updated to include that at least one collaboration or partnership should focus on 
increasing usage of the library by an underserved population. 
 
1.2.2 – Katherine asked if we should add something about making building modifications to this 
objective.  Carolyn replied that is included in the 3.4.1. objective. 
 
Katherine asked if she remembered correctly of a past discussion about potential money to hire a 
consultant for a marketing plan in the 2016-2017 fiscal year.  Carolyn replied that she didn’t believe that 
was what was discussed, as they have not included money in the budget for that.  They will need to hire 
a consultant, but will potentially us gift money for that.   
 
Steve asked in regards to a building consultant, are we talking about a consultant for all of the facilities 
or just the main location.  Carolyn replied that the Board will need to decide what scope they want on 
that and ask if we are just looking at what to do with this building or what our overall facility needs are.  
Her idea was that it would be for just the main building.  Steve agreed and thought maybe that should 
be clarified for the future.  Katherine also agreed that it should be clarified so it is easier to read.  
Carolyn replied that she would make the change to state the Corvallis Library. 
 
2.0 Equitable Access 
2.3.2 – Carolyn updated to include that at least one project and/or program emphasizes increasing 
usage by underserved groups. 
 
3.0 Infrastructure/Facilities 
3.1.3 – Jennifer suggested adding 3.1.3 to the last bullet point.  Katherine agreed and suggested 
adding the number for that into the timeline as well. 
 
3.2.1 & 3.2.2 – Katherine stated she is curious how these two things relate to one another.  Carolyn 
replied that the Library Management Team’s training plan will mesh with the staff’s plan.  We want the 
staff’s training plans to coincide and it needs to be within the context of the overall plan.  There are staff 
that fall between cracks on training sometimes and this will help focus on catching that.  Steve asked if 
that training is focused on just technology.  Carolyn replied that no, it is any type of training, so broader 
than just technology.  Katherine asked if it’d make sense to add in the context of the library’s plan for 
staff to agree on.  Carolyn replied that they could, but she doesn’t feel it is necessary to go to that level 
of specificity.  Staff will work with their supervisors to discuss what trainings are needed.  Steve agreed. 
 



Library Advisory Board 
February 3, 2016 

Page 4 of 6 

 

3.4 - Katherine suggested maybe adding something about sustainability.  Carolyn replied that these are 
mostly related to public service, because our role is to collaborate with building owners and we want to 
make sure we can provide our services through them.  The City’s sustainability goals are not county-
wide and we are not responsible for those things at the branches outside of the City of Corvallis.  It isn’t 
something we could necessarily change if they don’t want to follow the City’s sustainability goals.  
Katherine replied that she understands, but the other piece is that Anne Schuster is really strong on 
sustainability, from a commissioner perspective it may be viewed important.  Carolyn replied that the 
county doesn’t own those buildings.  We want to make sure they are safe and can be used in different 
ways.  We can add sustainable if the group wants to.  Jennifer asked what collaboration is needed to 
make sure the building is modern and able to provide services.  Carolyn replied that the old Alsea 
library was in a small old building that used to be a bank that became infested with mold.  We had taken 
the lead on moving the community to assess what the needs were.  It is up to the community to 
accomplish that, but we can help get it started.  Steve asked Katherine if she had a suggestion on 
wording for that.  Katherine suggested just adding another word – meet user needs and are modern, 
safe, versatile, sustainable, and welcoming.  Carolyn replied that adding sustainable should work.  
Steve agreed and stated that he feels sustainable doesn’t mean much more than the other words in the 
sentence and that it would show we are recommending sustainability.  Mike stated that to operate 
efficiently, he feels the existing language covers the same thing, he’s not sure if it is needed to add 
sustainable.  Karen asked if we are adding a new term, do we need to add a new bullet point to address 
that term.  Carolyn replied that she doesn’t believe they need to add a bullet point, as currently there 
are not points for each term. 
 
4.0 Support for Learning and Personal Enrichment 
4.1.3 – Katherine stated that she understands that it doesn’t necessarily fit and apply, but it just struck 
her while reading it.  With patrons being surveyed on their satisfaction of library materials, she wants to 
add materials and services.  Carolyn replied that it is a specific goal related to the collection not 
materials and services.  Jennifer added that it talks about programs down in 4.3.  Carolyn added that 
we can always add surveys as we go.  Scott added that in 4.3 it mentions programs.  Carolyn stated we 
could add a general patron survey, but the surveys mentioned are very specific.  Katherine realized that 
there is another survey in the goals, so it seems it is already covered. 
 
4.2.1 & 4.2.3 – Karen stated that a difference between 4.2.1 and 4.2.3 is that one is about promoting 
community and being an advocate and the other promotes library services and taking on the leadership 
goal.  When reworking them, maybe draw those out to make the differences more evident.  
 
4.2.2 – Katherine stated that she understands that Carolyn was given guidance to put things in a 
timeline, but in the case of this objective she doesn’t see how there can be a deadline.  Carolyn replied 
that yes, she agrees, and the date she included is to be a deadline to make sure staff comes up with 
something by the date listed.  Scott added that he sees this as more of a tool to make sure it gets done.  
Carolyn replied that yes that is exactly what it was for.  Cheryl stated that she thinks it is good to have 
the date and timelines.   
 
 
Carolyn went over the changes discussed and stated that she will make those changes and bring the 
updated draft to the next meeting.  Katherine asked if they need to discuss the timeline, as she has 
some questions.  She is curious with 2017 September and November, do they relate to two different 
numbers, as they seem like the same thing.  Carolyn replied that they are two different objectives; 4.2.1 
is more to use traditional means of publicity as opposed to marketing.  They could blend them into one 
objective if it would be better.  Katherine suggested just fine tuning wording on the September, but why 
give yourself two different deadlines if you don’t need to.  Carolyn replied that if it is not clear, staff will 
need to look at it and reword it as needed.  Steve stated that you want pieces of it, you can’t do it all at 
once or it makes it a meaningless goal.  You have to pick it apart to things we can describe understand 
and achieve. 
 



Library Advisory Board 
February 3, 2016 

Page 5 of 6 

 

Steve stated that he thinks annually and biennial are good to have in the timeline.  Katherine stated that 
one thing she did for herself and may be good to do for the Board, is to pick out the objectives that 
belong to the Board and those that Library staff will report on.  She was thinking that this could 
potentially be added to their Board calendar.  Carolyn agreed and stated that she will add it. 
 
Katherine asked if updating the policy is included in the 2016 fines and fees.  Carolyn replied that yes, it 
includes updating our circulation policy.  Steve asked how much money it costs to take in the fines 
revenue and manage it, and wonders if it is about the same as we receive.  Mike added that fines are 
an incentive, by just knowing they are there.  Steve added that you can manage systems without having 
penalties.   
 
Jennifer asked what the final steps will be for approving the goals and objectives.  Carolyn replied that 
she needs to write some background information and then it will need to be adopted by the City 
Council.  Carolyn asked if anyone has any edits, please let her know by the 15th of this month so she 
can update everything and have a final draft for review at the next meeting. 
 
Katherine commented that she was impressed with the minutes and how they were clear as to what 
was discussed at the last meeting.   
 

VII. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Carolyn reported that Carol Klamkin will be retiring in April and she is extra sad, as Carol is the last 
manager still here from when Carolyn started.  Carolyn stated that Carol is very good at what she does 
and she has taken on a lot over the years, doing a ton of what makes our Library operate so well.  
There are a lot of details to keep this place moving smoothly and Carol does all of those things, as well 
as supervising the administrative staff.  Carolyn wishes Carol wasn’t retiring, but wishes her the best.  
Carol commented that one of her retirement goals is to spend more time at the Library so she hopes to 
see everyone around. 
 
They are recruiting again to fill Mary Finnegan’s Adult and Youth Services Library Division Manager 
position. 
 
Carolyn and Andrew Cherbas met with the City of Philomath and discussed the library building there. 
 
The preliminary budget numbers have been announced and the Library seems to be in a status quo 
position.  The City announced position cuts and most are related to administrative work in City Hall, with 
the positions being non-union exempt positions.  There have not yet been any AFSCME positions cut, 
nor any Library staff.  The City Manager is hoping to cut one million dollars without impacting services 
to the public.  Of the positions reported being cut, two of the people will be laid off and one person is 
retiring.  The City Manager is going to meet with all departments in early March and go over budgets in 
detail.  He really wants to understand all departments’ budgets and services.  After that, she will be able 
to discuss details about the budget.   
 
Steve asked if the library is OK staffing wise this coming year.  Carolyn replied that the City does plan 
on making cuts, but as to when or whom, she doesn’t know yet.  It is possible the Library may lose staff 
if they leave for some reason, regardless of her say. 
 
They had a great in-service last week.  It was a fun day and they learned a lot.  She thanked the 
committee for all their hard work. 
 

VIII. DIVISION MANAGER REPORTS 
 
 Extension Services:  Andrew reported that all of the reviews he received back from in-service were 
good.  He reported that Carolyn reviewed the entire Strategic Plan at in-service and everyone was very 
thankful for that.  It was a little bit of an awkward day at the start, as the City Manager’s email regarding 



Library Advisory Board 
February 3, 2016 

Page 6 of 6 

 

budget cuts was sent the evening before and the City Manager was on the agenda for first thing the 
next morning.  That being said, Library staff handled the situation very professionally.   
 
Andrew announced that the Monroe Library launched a Mini Maker program and it was very successful.  
He added that the Maker program is definitely growing and they met again to figure out how to continue 
to keep up with its growth.  They are discussing doing a more focused program option, that wouldn’t 
start until fall.  
 
 Circulation:  Shaun Hearn reported that the new subs and new staff are doing well.  The carpet 
replacement didn’t go as planned, but ended up turning out well.  There was also painting done.  
 
 Administration:  Carol reported that she is working on the budget and administrative staff is doing a 
few more online demos on meeting room reservations systems.  The ultimate goal is to make it easier 
for staff to reserve rooms and events and for the public to see if rooms are available and go online to 
request reserving rooms. 
 
She thanked Carolyn for her kind words and added her personal thanks to the staff here. 
 
 Technical Services:  Felicia Uhden reported that she has been having further discussion with 
finance in regards to the H T E and TLC reconciliation.  The process is complicated and she had her 
first lesson this month on how to run the reconciliation. 
 
 Adult & Youth Services:  Kristin Starnes stated that there were 143 participants for the Stuffed 
Animal Sleepover program.   
 
One of their department goals is to reach out to schools this year.  Kristy Kemper Hodge from the Youth 
department has a great partnership with Cheldelin School and they started a book club that has gone 
great so far.  They also had a book swap and they have been asked to return for other events. 
 
Sip and Spell was fantastic with 650 people attending and it bringing in about $1,000 over costs.   
 
Cheryl congratulated Norah Storniolo on her Future First Citizen award.  She added that Jacque 
Schreck has also received that award in the past. 
 

IX. BOARD REPORTS 
 
Friends of the Library – Carolyn agreed that the Sip and Spell event was a fun evening and as Kristin 
reported the turnout was great.  The Book Sale is going to be the third weekend this month at the 
Benton County Fairgrounds.   
 
Library Foundation – Steve reported that the Foundation will be meeting at the end of this month. 
 

X. INFORMATION SHARING – None. 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next meeting will be on March 2, 2016 at 7:30 pm.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:47 pm. 



 
 
 

 

 
 

****************************** 
LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD REPORT 

 
March 2, 2016 

****************************** 
 
 
 

 
 
REPORTING PERIOD:  February 2016 
 
 
 A. Division Highlights 
 
   Administration 

 The proposed budget for FY 16-17 was finalized and submitted to the 
Finance Department. In March there will be an in depth review by the City 
Manager, before Budget Commission meetings are held in April 

 Administrative Services Manager Carol Klamkin met with City Public 
Information Officer Patrick Rollens about changes he will be making in the 
City newsletter. The April issue of this online publication will reflect some of 
the changes. 

 Administration staff had two online demonstrations of event and meeting 
room scheduling systems. Both of the products had many features that would 
work for the Library, but more testing and comparison will be done before 
selecting a system that would be the best replacement for our current 
Evanced system. 

 
   Access Services 

 Lucky Day materials will now be available in branch libraries as well as at 
Corvallis. 

 We continue working with the City’s Finance Department on reconciling 
payments in TLC with the City financial system. We did the monthly 
reconciliation for January payments this time, instead of Finance staff. We 
continued to refine the financial collection policy and its associated 
documents.  

 Access Services Manager Felicia Uhden participated in a webinar from The 
Library Corporation (TLC) about the upgraded software for loading catalog 
records into our system.   
 

   Adult and Youth Services 
 David Kim brought a fortepiano for A Historical Performance: Old Pianos and 

New Musicianship, a program brought to the library by Corvallis-OSU Piano 



Library Advisory Board Report 
March 2, 2016 
Reporting Period – February 2016 
Page 2 
 

International. This beautiful performance brought out 75 people on February 
6th. 

 On February 10th Bob Lillie discussed his new book, Beauty From the Beast: 
Plate Tectonics and the Landscapes of the Pacific Northwest, that features 
information about the Cascadia subduction zone. There was a crowd of 100. 

 Maggie Stuckey and the First Alternative Co-Op brought Soup Night to the 
library on February 11th where they served Vegetable Mulligatawny Soup with 
Apple Salsa and fresh bread. Maggie discussed her book about community 
soup nights around the country to an audience of 45. The soup was delicious 
and the idea (community soup night) had a distinctly Corvallis feel. 

 Partnering with the League of Women Voters and the Corvallis Sustainability 
Coalition, the library brought in Kristy Athens, an Oregon author and farmer, 
to lead an Oregon Humanities sponsored discussion: Good Food, Bad Food: 
Agriculture, Ethics, and Personal Choice. A crowd of forty discussed the 
ethics of our food decisions with Kristy on February 17th. 

 A group of five met for the Graphic Novel Book Club and discussed Kill My 
Mother by legendary artist Jules Feiffer. The Corvallis Book Club is 
experiencing some unexplained growth and is in hot demand recently; they 
discussed Tales of a Female Nomad with 17 people. 

 The library’s new coloring program saw a slow down this month with only 
three people in attendance. The longer standing and continually popular 
Letter Writing Social will meet on the last Sunday of this month (the 28th). 

 The ESL Conversation Class led by Cheryl Stevenson averages 12 students 
per class and is continuing to see demand for a second, more structured 
class. We have agreed to offer a second class for intermediate students 
wanting to learn more grammar that will run every Monday from April 5th to 
June 6th. Both ESL Classes will break for the summer. 

 Reference Librarians Charles Dunham, Carrie Ottow, Kristin Starnes, and 
Bonnie Brzozowski with Community Library Specialists Mike Hanson and 
Kathy Koetz attended a ReferenceUSA training/refresher and learned about 
many enhancements to this fantastic patron resource including historic 
business searching, advanced search limiters to help marketing and  
business professionals and job seekers, and much more. 

 A group of 34 children met to discuss There Is a Bird On Your Head! by the 
popular author Mo Willems. The Beginning Readers Book Club has a steady 
and enthusiastic following of kindergartners through 2nd graders. In addition to 
a book discussion, each monthly meeting contains time for a story, jokes or 
riddles, and a book-related activity or craft. Next month there will be a new 
Beginning Chapters Book Club for children who are ready to “graduate” from 
the Beginning Readers Book Club and move up the next level.  

 The R.E.A.D. Dogs program was held on February 11th, offering another 
chance for children to practice their reading skills at the library. 

 Over 100 attended the Lego Club this month! Children were given the 
challenge to build something based on the theme of “flags”. Books displaying 
the flags of different nations were provided for inspiration. Many of the 
participants’ creations can be seen on display in the youth display boxes at 
the entrance to the children’s area of the library. 



Library Advisory Board Report 
March 2, 2016 
Reporting Period – February 2016 
Page 3 
 

 Weekend youth programming in February included Saturday Stories, ¡los 
Cuentos!, Family Music Fun with music educator Johana St.-Clair, and 
Science Saturday covering the topic of nutrition with OSU Extension Services. 
Sunday Play Days have continued to average 10-20 in attendance each 
week. Rotating play topics are introduced each week through dramatic play, 
toys, and literacy prompts. 

 Reference Librarian Elizabeth Johnson and Community Library Specialist 
Julia Engle attended the Wilson Elementary Game Night on February 12th, 
along with other organizations like the Crescent Valley High Robotics Team.  
Families played a variety of board games brought by the library and learned 
about library programs. The library has been asked to return to Wilson 
Elementary in March to promote literacy during the school’s Family Literacy 
Night. 

 Minecraft Monday was held on February 22nd with 45 enthusiastic kids 
coming together to play Minecraft using the library’s iPads in conjunction with 
the library’s Minecraft server or on the Xbox. Lego Minecraft supplies were 
also on hand for creative builders.  

 The Makers Club has seen an increase in younger attendees, in part due to 
outreach promotion at local schools and area Maker events like the WIN Expo 
at HP and Winter Wonderings courses at Oregon State University’s 
Precollege program. Nearly 60 youth attended the Maker Club meetings in 
February to try out 3D printing, Arduino, robotics, Snap Circuits, littleBits, 
Cubelets, Makey Makeys, coding and strategy board games, bridge building 
with manipulatives, and Lego Mindstorms. This successful program is due in 
large part to the excellent volunteers that help staff the program and guide the 
children and teen participants. 

 Reference Librarian Kristin Starnes attended a Public Library Association’s 
Lead the Change Maker Workshop webinar on February 23rd. This webinar 
covered successful maker programs and spaces developed by school and 
public librarians across the country. 

 Teen programming included Teen Writers group meetings on February 4th & 
18th, Teen Advisors on February 12th, and Teen Takeover on February 19th. 
Reference Librarian Kristy Kemper Hodge also visited a Cheldelin Middle 
School class and the lunchtime Cheldelin Middle School Book Club on 
February 25th. 

 Kristy Kemper Hodge attended Benton County Positive Youth Development’s 
Teen Summit at LaSells Stewart Center on February 10th. This is a free one 
day conference for 8th-12th grade students in Benton County with the goal of 
offering workshops for youth to come together, network, and learn more about 
important issues that affect their lives. Kristy worked with volunteer Ken Olsen 
to provide a Maker workshop to teens attending this conference. 

 Reference Librarian Kristin Starnes attended the Beverly Cleary Children’s 
Choice Award Committee meeting at George Fox University on February 27th 
to discuss and select the nominees for the 2017 Award. This award is 
sponsored by the Oregon Association of School Libraries and the Oregon 
Library Association.  



Library Advisory Board Report 
March 2, 2016 
Reporting Period – February 2016 
Page 4 
 

 Early Literacy Coordinator Peik-Kuan Lim provided outreach services and 
visits to 25 childcare centers, home daycares, preschools, a special needs 
preschool class at the Linn Benton Lincoln ESD, and community 
organizations such as Mari’s Place at Community Outreach and Milestones 
Family Recovery during February.   

 Kristen Starnes finished up her one-month stint as Supervising Librarian for 
the Adult and Youth Services Division. Bonnie Brzozowski took over mid-
month. 

 
   Extension Services 

 The Philomath Community Library (PCL) held a successful teen book club. 
Six teens discussed the graphic novel Nimona. 

 Librarian Ashley Folgate visited Kidco Head Start at the Philomath Center. 
Twenty-four people were in attendance. 

 The PCL held a sharpie tie dye art lab for kids. Twenty-two patrons attended 
the event. 

 Back in January, the Monroe Community Library (MCL) held a town hall 
meeting with Senator Merkley that drew people from all over Benton County 
as well as surrounding counties. A library tour was provided to the Senator 
and the word is he was very impressed with the facility. 

 The monthly Art Explorers program at the MCL, hosted by Ashley Folgate, 
continues to be well attended.  

 The MCL had a new main lobby light fixture installed. The light fixture was 
paid for by the South Benton Library project. Its design was inspired by the 
historic train depot that now makes up the MCL’s meeting room space. 

 The Bookmobile attended the Garfield Elementary Book Exchange. This is 
the second year we have attended this event. Forty-seven people visited the 
Bookmobile and learned about the various services it provides. 

 
   Technology 

 Public 3D printing continues to go well. Our third 3D printer is now online and 
helping with the workload.  

 
 B. Other 
 

 The annual Friends of the Library Big Book Sale was very successful, with 
initial estimates of around $30,000 in sales. 

 Public Works Building Maintenance staff were busy with a variety of projects: 
carpet replacement in the public computer area, a new drinking fountain in the 
basement near the Board Room, a new awning on the front patio over the 
book drop, interior water line repairs, along with the myriad miscellaneous 
repairs and tasks that they do every month around our building. 
 

 






























	Agenda 03.02.16
	Library Board 2016.02.03 Minutes
	Report 02-2016
	Board Packet Articles 2016.03.02

